
Phil Norrey
Chief Executive (DCC)

To: The Chair and Members of the 
Heart of the South West 
(HotSW) Local Enterprise 
Partnership (LEP) Joint 
Scrutiny Committee

(see below)

County Hall
Topsham Road
Exeter
Devon 
EX2 4QD

Your ref : Date : 25 October 2018 Email: stephanie.lewis@devon.gov.uk
Our ref : Please ask for : Stephanie Lewis 01392 382486

HEART OF THE SOUTH WEST (HOTSW) LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP (LEP) 
JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Friday, 2nd November, 2018

A meeting of the Heart of the South West (HotSW) Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Joint Scrutiny 
Committee is to be held on the above date, at 2.15 pm at Committee Suite - County Hall to consider 
the following matters.

PHIL NORREY
Chief Executive

A G E N D A

PART I - OPEN COMMITTEE

1 Apologies 

2 Election of Chair 

3 Election of Vice Chair 

4 Items Requiring Urgent Attention 

Items which in the opinion of the Chair should be considered at the meeting as matters of 
urgency.

5 Welcomes and Introductions 

MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION OR REVIEW

6 Strengthened Local Enterprise Partnerships (Pages 1 - 10)
Report of the County Solicitor (CSO/18/31), attached



MATTERS FOR INFORMATION

7 Introduction from Mr Ralph - Chief Executive of Heart of the South West LEP Board 

8 Scrutiny Processes and Operation - Presentation by the Head of Scrutiny 

Presentation by the Head of Scrutiny (Devon County Council) on how Scrutiny works and 
operates at Devon County Council.

9 Devon Scrutiny Annual Report 2017/2018 (Pages 11 - 14)

Scrutiny Annual Report 2017/2018, attached for information.

10 Scrutiny Work Programme 

In accordance with previous practice, Scrutiny Committees are requested to review the 
list of forthcoming business and determine which items are to be included in the Work 
Programme. 

The Scrutiny Work Programme can be found at: 
https://new.devon.gov.uk/democracy/committee-meetings/scrutiny-
committees/scrutinywork-programme/

11 Dates of Future Meetings 

Thursday 14 February 2019
Thursday 20 June 2019
Thursday 17 October 2019

Thursday 13 February 2020

Currently, meeting start times are scheduled for 10.30am, but the Committee are asked 
to consider moving to a 2.15pm start time.

PART II - ITEMS WHICH MAY BE TAKEN IN THE ABSENCE OF PRESS AND 
PUBLIC ON THE GROUNDS THAT EXEMPT INFORMATION MAY BE DISCLOSED

NIL

Members are reminded that Part II Reports contain confidential information and should therefore be 
treated accordingly.  They should not be disclosed or passed on to any other person(s).
Members are also reminded of the need to dispose of such reports carefully and are therefore invited to 
return them to the Democratic Services Officer at the conclusion of the meeting for disposal.

https://new.devon.gov.uk/democracy/committee-meetings/scrutiny-committees/scrutinywork-programme/
https://new.devon.gov.uk/democracy/committee-meetings/scrutiny-committees/scrutinywork-programme/


Membership 
Councillors Y Atkinson, J Brook, R Hosking, J Mathews, L Leyshon, M Lewis, C A Paul, R Williams, 
C Lewis, S Darling, G Derrick, J Morris, N Cavill and N Thwaites

Declaration of Interests

Members are reminded that they must declare any interest they may have in any item to be considered at this 
meeting, prior to any discussion taking place on that item.

Access to Information

Any person wishing to inspect any minutes, reports or lists of background papers relating to any item on this 
agenda should contact Stephanie Lewis on 01392 382486. 

Agenda and minutes of the Committee are published on the Council’s Website 

Webcasting, Recording or Reporting of Meetings and Proceedings

The proceedings of this meeting may be recorded for broadcasting live on the internet via the ‘Democracy 
Centre’ on the County Council’s website.  The whole of the meeting may be broadcast apart from any 
confidential items which may need to be considered in the absence of the press and public. For more 
information go to: http://www.devoncc.public-i.tv/core/

In addition, anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press and public are 
excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not to do so, as directed by the Chairman.  Any 
filming must be done as unobtrusively as possible from a single fixed position without the use of any additional 
lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting and having regard also to the wishes of 
any member of the public present who may not wish to be filmed.  As a matter of courtesy, anyone wishing to 
film proceedings is asked to advise the Chair or the Democratic Services Officer in attendance so that all 
those present may be made aware that is happening. 

Members of the public may also use Facebook and Twitter or other forms of social media to report on 
proceedings at this meeting.  An open, publicly available Wi-Fi network (i.e. DCC) is normally available for 
meetings held in the Committee Suite at County Hall.  For information on Wi-Fi availability at other locations, 
please contact the Officer identified above.

Emergencies 

In the event of the fire alarm sounding leave the building immediately by the nearest available exit, following 
the fire exit signs.  If doors fail to unlock press the Green break glass next to the door. Do not stop to collect 
personal belongings, do not use the lifts, do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

Mobile Phones 

Please switch off all mobile phones before entering the Committee Room or Council Chamber

If you need a copy of this Agenda and/or a Report in another 
format (e.g. large print, audio tape, Braille or other languages), 
please contact the Information Centre on 01392 380101 or email 
to: centre@devon.gov.uk or write to the Democratic and Scrutiny 
Secretariat at County Hall, Exeter, EX2 4QD.

Induction loop system available

http://www.devoncc.public-i.tv/core/
mailto:centre@devon.gov.yk




CSO/18/31
Heart of the South West Joint Scrutiny Committee

2 November 2018

Heart of the South West (HotSW) Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Joint 
Scrutiny Committee

Report of the County Solicitor 

Recommendations:

(a) that the Committee agrees to note the progress to date regarding the 
implementation of a Joint Scrutiny function (Committee) for the South West Local 
Enterprise Partnership (LEP) and the Terms of Reference and Operating Procedures 
as outlined in appendix 1; 

(b) that the Committee consider the recently issued Government Guidance 
‘Strengthened Local Enterprise Partnerships’ and satisfies itself that current processes 
are still fit for purpose; and

(c) that the Committee agree to review and evaluate its operation in twelve months 
time to assess effectiveness and added value and consider whether any changes are 
necessary and / or appropriate.    Any changes proposed would be subject to the 
approval of the Constituent Authorities and may require wider consideration across the 
Heart of the South West Councils.

1. Introduction and Background

1.1 The Mary Ney report, Review of Local Enterprise Partnership Governance & 
Transparency, was commissioned by the Government and published in October 2017. 
Within that Report was the advice that Scrutiny arrangements should be in place to 
monitor both the decision-making and achievements of the Local Enterprise 
Partnership (LEP).

1.2 At the time of starting to develop proposals to address this reported lack of 
Scrutiny arrangements for the LEP’s, there was no legislative framework in place, 
although statutory guidance was anticipated prior to the summer recess. 

1.3 The new guidance ‘Strengthened Local Enterprise Partnerships’ was received 
in August 2018. Whilst there was not a great deal of detail about how any local 
arrangements should operate, the review documentation did recognise the role of local 
authorities in scrutinising LEPs and also the recommendations of the Mary Ney Report.  
The Government remains committed to implementing the recommendations of this 
Report in full so there will continue to be a focus on having effecting local 
arrangements in place to scrutinise the LEP.

1.4 The aim of Officers (from the outset) was to develop a proposal for a formal 
joint LEP Scrutiny arrangement with Elected Members involved in the Scrutiny function, 

Please note that the following recommendation is subject to confirmation by Committee 
before taking effect.

Page 1

Agenda Item 6

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/655188/Review_of_local_enterprise_partnership_governance_and_transparency.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/655188/Review_of_local_enterprise_partnership_governance_and_transparency.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/728058/Strengthened_Local_Enterprise_Partnerships.pdf


but independent of existing Scrutiny Committees, with a focus on Strategic Scrutiny of 
the LEP and its strategies, therefore adding value and meeting the Government’s 
requirements for LEP scrutiny.

1.5 It was also important that local issues, for example, reviewing progress of local 
schemes (funded by LEP) to individual authorities remained with local Scrutiny 
committees, so no ‘removal’ of local Scrutiny ‘rights’.

1.6 According to the Mary Ney Report, a number of LEPs, but not all, refer to the 
role of Scrutiny in overseeing their performance and effectiveness. Some LEPs are 
scrutinised from time to time by their accountable body Overview and Scrutiny function. 
The issue was highlighted as an area for further development to give an increased 
independent assurance and the report asked that LEPs reported on it as part of their 
annual assurance statement during the Annual Conversation process.

2. National Context / Guidance 

2.1 At the time of developing the proposal for a Joint Committee, there was work at 
a national level, for example County Council’s Network (CCN) meeting with officials at 
the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) to discuss the 
LEP review. 

2.2 The recently received guidance highlighted that Government had reviewed their 
policy towards LEPs to ensure they continued to support Government in meeting the 
ambition of ensuring prosperous communities throughout the country.  For the 
Industrial Strategy, Government has said that it is committed to work with LEP’s to 
bring forward reforms to leadership, governance, accountability, financial reporting and 
geographical boundaries. 

2.3 They key features of the guidance ‘Strengthened Local Enterprise Partnerships’ 
is outlined below.

2.4 Roles and Responsibility - whilst LEP’s have played a key role in convening 
local economic stakeholders to develop evidence-based economic strategies, it was 
reported that Government would publish a statement on the role and responsibilities of 
LEP’s, focusing on enhancing productivity through the development and delivery of 
their Local Industrial Strategy.   Since the publication of the guidance, the HotSW area 
has been prioritised by the Government in Wave 2 of the development of Local 
Industrial Strategies.  A further statement on Local Industrial Strategies will be 
published to guide this work but discussions are already taking place with Government 
officials as to how this will be taken forward in the HotSW area. Other actions include 
commissioning an annual economic outlook to independently measure economic 
performance.
 
2.5 Leadership and organisational capacity – The Report outlined that 
successful LEP’s were led by influential private and public sector leaders and needed 
robust governance arrangements that provided the framework to take tough decisions 
and hold local partners to account for delivery. Government would therefore increase 
regular dialogue with LEP’s and actively work with them to advertise opportunities for 
private sector leaders. They would also offer an induction and training programme and 
provide up to £20 million between 2018-19 and 2019-20 in additional capacity funding 
to support LEP’s to implement the review and to provide the strategic and analytical 
capability required to develop Local Industrial Strategies.   Details of this funding and 
the wider ‘offer’ are still awaited.

Page 2

Agenda Item 6



2.6 Accountability and performance - Government has strengthened its 
approach to assurance processes for the Local Growth Fund and additional guidance 
has been provided to LEP’s on transparency. The Report outlined that Government 
wanted this to be further strengthened and Government would maintain overall 
accountability for the system of LEP’s and local growth funding. Other actions included 
implementing the recommendations of the Ney Review, assessing and publishing 
annual performance (within a revised National Assurance Framework) and developing 
with both the LEP’s and the LEP Network a sector-led approach to assessing and 
improving performance through regular peer review. 

2.7 Geography - overlapping geographies emerged when LEP’s were first formed 
and Government considers that retaining overlaps dilutes accountability and 
responsibility. Government will therefore ask LEP Chairs and other stakeholders to 
come forward with considered proposals by the end of September on geographies 
which best reflect real functional economic areas.   There have been discussions within 
the HotSW area about the current LEP boundaries and there is no collective support 
from within the local authority sector for changes to the current LEP boundary.

2.8 In terms of a Scrutiny function – the guidance outlined that LEP’s need to 
operate on organisational structures that support local decision making and provide 
greater assurance over the management of public funding. These structures should 
enable clear lines of accountability for delivery with local partners, as well as 
democratic, public and business scrutiny of decision making.  

2.9 Government has said it will support all LEP’s to actively participate in relevant 
local authority Scrutiny panel enquiries to ensure effective and appropriate democratic 
Scrutiny of their investment decisions, including support in setting out how they will 
ensure external Scrutiny and expert oversight.

2.10 The guidance also demonstrates that there are numerous issues for the new 
Joint Committee to consider as part of its work programme, particularly with the 
availability of performance data, annual reports and also the development and 
implementation of the Local Industrial Strategy. 

3. Local Context 

3.1 At the beginning of the year, there was no collective local authority scrutiny 
arrangement in place for the HotSW LEP and therefore LEP activity fell to individual 
councils to scrutinise through their local Scrutiny arrangements.  This was, at best, a 
‘piecemeal’ approach.

3.2 The Annual Conversation process for the HotSW LEP with Government 
identified them as not being compliant in relation to Scrutiny.  Of particular note was 
future LEP funding from Government depended on the LEP having compliant local 
arrangements in place in conjunction with local authorities and Scrutiny was identified 
as a key area for improvement. This led to the HotSW LEP’s governance arrangements 
as ‘Requiring Improvement’.  

3.3 Chris Garcia, the then Chief Executive of the HotSW LEP approached 
Somerset County Council as the administrative authority for the LEP, with a formal 
request that the local authorities within the HotSW area urgently addressed the lack of 
compliant Scrutiny arrangements to ensure the continuation of LEP funding under the 
LEPs annual conversation process.   Officers started work on receipt of this request 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



and Somerset County Council gave assurance under the Annual Assurance process 
that adequate Scrutiny arrangements would be established by autumn 2018.

3.4 In the absence of any guidance at that time, the approach pursued was 
designed to be a flexible solution which would be capable of being ‘flexed’ to meet any 
requirements coming out of the LEP review.  

3.5 With that outcome now known and with no additional requirements for LEP 
scrutiny specified, Officers feel the current proposal is still fit for purpose at this stage.    
It is important that the Committee agrees with this stance.  Informal soundings of some 
district councils across the area has indicated support at this stage for the Committee 
to meet and become established and then in due course review and evaluate its 
operation to assess its effectiveness and added value and consider whether any 
changes are necessary and / or appropriate.    Any changes proposed would be 
subject to the approval of the Constituent Authorities and may require wider 
consideration across the Heart of the South West councils.    An appropriate timescale 
for this review would be 12 months after its establishment (therefore in the autumn of 
2019) which will give time for the Committee to settle in to its role.   By that time the 
LEP’s role in the development and delivery of the Local Industrial Strategy and the 
impact of its change of focus on its operation and relationship with the HotSW Joint 
Committee will be clear.  The recommendation at (c) for the Committee to consider 
reflects the approach set out in this paragraph.  

4.  Work to Date / Alternatives Considered
  
4.1 Officers from Devon County Council, Somerset County Council, Plymouth City 
Council and Torbay Council met in April 2018 and proposed some initial terms of 
reference for how a Joint Scrutiny Committee might work and on 30th May 2018, 
Officers and Members from the same four Councils (and including a Member 
representative from West Somerset Council) held a meeting / review session at Devon 
County Council to consider and discuss the proposed terms of reference.

4.2 The agreed terms of reference and operating procedures as supported by the 
Members present at the review session are attached at Appendix 1 and were used as 
the final version for each Authority to take forward through their own Committee 
structures.

4.3 Agreement to the proposals has been reached through Devon County Council, 
Somerset County Council, Torbay Council and Plymouth City Council.

4.4 As part of the process there were a number of alternatives considered, the most 
obvious being to ensure LEP attendance at relevant existing Somerset County Council 
and Devon County Council Scrutiny Committees, but this was not considered sufficient 
by the Government under the Annual Assurance process.

4.5 There was also a possibility of using the HotSW Joint Committee to scrutinise 
the LEP but such a mechanism didn’t meet the Government’s requirements.  The 
reason being that the LEP and the Joint Committee were working on similar agendas to 
improve productivity and therefore both would hold the other to account for delivery of 
their responsibilities.  Both are decision making bodies with the local authority 
membership focused on Council Leaders and Cabinet Members, therefore this model 
of ‘holding to account’ fell outside of local authority Scrutiny arrangements.

Page 4

Agenda Item 6



4.6 There are other potential models of joint Scrutiny that could have been 
established, but the approach that was eventually agreed ensures that the key focus is 
on strategic Scrutiny within the HotSW area.  The membership of the Joint Committee 
and delegation of functions is focused on the authorities with strategic responsibilities.   
However, the interests of the District Councils as key local partners are recognised in 
the proposal through an appropriate level of representation within the membership.

5. Reporting Mechanisms / Links with the Joint Committee

5.1 In light of the above, it is clear there will need to be some reporting links 
between the Heart of the South West Joint Scrutiny Committee (LEP), the LEP Board 
and also the Heart of the South West Joint Committee.

5.2 The Joint Committee has a direct reporting line to the LEP Board in relation to 
LEP business and this is the key line of accountability.   The Committee will make 
regular reports to the Board and may make recommendations to the Board. The Board 
is not obliged to comply with Scrutiny recommendations but the assurance 
requirements on LEPs and the local commitment from the HotSW LEP to Scrutiny 
should ensure that the function is taken seriously and that appropriate responses are 
forthcoming.    The Committee has responsibility for its own work programme but the 
LEP may also request that the Committee undertakes Scrutiny of its activities and 
performance.

5.3 A key function of the Joint Scrutiny Committee is to scrutinise delivery of the 
Productivity Strategy.   The Strategy was jointly agreed by the LEP and the HotSW 
Joint Committee and will be jointly delivered.    A secondary line of reporting for the 
Joint Scrutiny Committee will therefore be to the HotSW Joint Committee and 
specifically in relation to the delivery of the Productivity Strategy.    

5.4 Initial conversations with the Chief Executive of the LEP have produced 
suggestions for annual reports and various mechanisms to keep relevant bodies 
informed. 

6. Scrutiny Processes 

6.1 At this stage the scrutiny function will need to learn from the good practice 
collected locally on the approaches to take to make it most effective. In 
summary the role of scrutiny is as follows:

 Policy review and development: Helping to shape the way services are 
delivered;

 Scrutinising decisions: Is the right action being taken? Are services/processes 
working effectively?

 Examining services that impact upon the local community.

6.2 As with Local Authority Scrutiny, the function will exist as a critical friend and will 
not make decisions, but use evidence to support policy and direction 
development for the region, whilst holding decision makers to account.

Currently this will be done through Committee meetings alone. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



7. Summary / Conclusion / Next Steps

7.1 There was an urgent requirement to have arrangements in place to support 
local authority Elected Member Scrutiny of the Heart of the South West Local 
Enterprise Partnership. The proposals are light touch and also appropriate especially in 
light of the additional guidance recently received. 

7.2 There have been initial discussions with the newly appointed Chief Executive of 
the LEP, who is giving further thought to how the LEP might support the Local Authority 
Scrutiny function in terms of training and officer support. He has also agreed to funding 
to support the work of the Committee which demonstrates a commitment and buy in 
from the LEP to these proposed Scrutiny arrangements. He met with the Head of 
Democratic Services and the Head of Scrutiny from Devon County Council on 15th 
October 2018, which was a very positive meeting with some initial ideas for the work 
programme and a real commitment to the Committee adding value.

7.3 The new Joint Scrutiny Committee will be meeting 2/3 times per year. The 
proposed future dates are 14th February 2019, 20th June 2019, 17th October 2019 and 
13th February 2020 all at 10.30am (timing to be confirmed), taking place at County Hall, 
Topsham Road, Exeter. 

7.4 It will be important to review the operation and effectiveness of the Joint 
Scrutiny Committee and officers would recommend an evaluation takes place and that 
this be reported and debated at the Committee meeting on 17th October 2019, to 
assess the future operation and direction of travel to ensure the Committee is fit for 
purpose. 

                                                                        JAN SHADBOLT                

[Electoral Divisions:  All]

Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers
Contact for Enquiries:  Karen Strahan / Camilla de Bernhardt Lane 
Tel No:  01392 382264 / 01392 383143      Room: G31 
Background Paper                           Date                      File Reference
Nil

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



Appendix 1 

Heart of the South West Local Enterprise Partnership Joint Scrutiny Committee
Terms of Reference

1. Purpose

The Joint Scrutiny Committee will provide strategic overview and Scrutiny of the 
activities of the Heart of the South West (HotSW) Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) to 
complement the existing Council’s Scrutiny arrangements.

2.  Roles, Duties and Responsibilities

In meeting its purpose, the Joint Scrutiny Committee will be specifically charged with:

 The review of strategic decisions made by the LEP Board;
 The review of progress of programmes under the management of the LEP to 

identify barriers to progress, good practice and possible improvements to the 
LEP’s programme management function, notwithstanding the ability of Local 
Authorities to scrutinise individual programmes of delivery which impact on their 
communities; 

 Scrutiny of the delivery of the Strategic Economic Plan and the Productivity 
Strategy; and

 To review LEP performance and consider any comparative data the Joint 
Committee deems necessary.

3.  Scrutiny Function

The Joint Scrutiny Committee will provide a new joint Scrutiny function and the Joint 
Committees constituent authorities will be asked to delegate the strategic overview of 
the LEP functions to the Joint Scrutiny Committee (this will not remove the right of local 
authorities to scrutinise matters relating to programme delivery that impact on the 
people within those communities).

4.  Membership / Substitute Members

The membership of the Joint Scrutiny Committee will be:

Devon County Council (4 Members)
Plymouth City Council (2 Members)
Torbay Council (2 Members)
Somerset County Council (4 Members)
Devon Districts (3 Members)
Somerset Districts (2 Members)

In line with the requirements of the Local Government and Housing Act 1979, political 
proportionality has been considered and is not considered appropriate to apply to the 
collective membership of the Joint Scrutiny Committee. However, where a Council is 
appointing three or more Members, political proportionality will apply to those 
appointments in line with the legislation. For less than three, each constituent authority 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



will be free to consider their own political proportionality in making their appointments to 
the Joint Committee on an annual basis.

The level of representation proposed for the County authorities is considered 
appropriate because of their administrative authority duties in respect of the LEP.

Members of the Executive / Cabinet from constituent authorities are precluded from 
sitting as members of the Joint Scrutiny Committee. 

District Council representatives should be appointed from authorities not already 
represented on the HotSW Local Enterprise Partnership Board and also should not be 
County Councillors.

Constituent authorities may make substitutions in accordance with their own
procedures where one of their Members is unable to attend any meeting of
the Joint Scrutiny Committee.  Substitutes do not need to be named, but as a courtesy 
the administering secretariat should be advised of the name of the substitute at least 
24 hours in advance of the meeting.

Reflecting the approach to engage with stakeholders across the LEP Area, the Scrutiny 
Committee will be able to invite to meetings witnesses which it considers will contribute 
to the delivery of an effective Scrutiny function.

5.  Work Programme

The Joint Scrutiny Committee will maintain a work programme of activities.

Constituent Authority Scrutiny Committees may ask the Joint Scrutiny Committee to 
consider matters for inclusion in the work programme.  The final decision will a matter 
for the Joint Scrutiny Committee.  District Council Scrutiny Committees not directly 
represented on the Joint Scrutiny Committee should do this through the District 
Councils Members appointed to the Committee.

6.  Reporting Arrangements

The work and recommendations of the Joint Scrutiny Committee will be regularly 
reported to the Heart of the South West LEP Board. 

Members may make reports to their “home” constituent authority in accordance with 
their own governance procedures.

7.  Agendas, reports and minutes

The agenda and supporting papers will be published and circulated at least five clear 
working days in advance of meetings.

The minutes of any meetings will be published on the administering secretariat’s 
website and circulated to partner organisations as soon as practicable.

The Committee will operate under the Standing Orders of the administering authority.

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



The HotSW LEP will provide a link to the agendas and minutes of the Joint Scrutiny 
Committee on its website.

8.  Frequency of meetings

The date, time and venue of meetings will be fixed in advance by the Joint Scrutiny 
Committee and an annual schedule of meetings agreed. 

The Joint Scrutiny Committee will meet three times per year (March, July and 
November). Dates will be published on the website of the administering authority. 

Additional meetings may be convened at the request of the Chair.

9.  Election of Chair

The Chair will be elected on an annual basis by Members of the Joint Scrutiny 
Committee.

10.  Quorum

The quorum of the Committee shall be one quarter of Members, equating to a quorum 
of 5.

11.  Declarations of interest

Declarations of Interest will be made in accordance with the Government Guidance. 

Joint Scrutiny Committee Members are subject to the Code of Conduct for Elected 
Members adopted by the Constituent Authority that nominated them including the 
requirement to declare relevant interests at formal meetings of the Joint Scrutiny 
Committee.

12.  Voting

In principle recommendations will be reached by consensus, but if a vote is required it 
will be by a simple majority of all members present.

Where there are equal votes the Chair of the meeting will have the casting vote.

13.  Duty to attend, cooperate and respond

The Joint Scrutiny Committee may require by invitation the Chair of the LEP Board and 
the Chief Executive of the LEP to appear before it to explain (in relation to all aspects 
of the Committee’s work) the performance of the LEP and / or any particular decision or 
series of decisions.  The Chair and Chief Executive have agreed to attend if so 
required, unless they have a legitimate reason for not doing so.

Following each meeting of the Joint Scrutiny Committee, the Committee’s 
recommendations will be submitted to the LEP Board for consideration.  The LEP 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



Board will be required to consider those recommendations at its next meeting, and 
respond to the Joint Scrutiny Committee indicating what (if any) action the LEP Board 
proposes to take. The response should be made within 28 days of the LEP Board 
meeting and will be published.

14.  Code of conduct

Members of the Joint Scrutiny Committee are expected to observe the “Seven 
Principles of Public Life” (the ‘Nolan’ principles) and shall be bound by their own 
authority’s Code of Conduct in their work on the Joint Scrutiny Committee.

Members are expected to act in the interests of the Joint Scrutiny Committee, except 
where this would result in a breach of a statutory or other duty to their Constituent 
Authority or would be in breach of their Constituent Authority’s Code of Conduct.

15.  Access to information

Joint Scrutiny Committee meetings are regarded as a Council Committee for the 
purposes of Access to Information Act. 

Meetings will be open to the press and public and the Freedom of Information Act 
provisions shall apply to all business.

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



CHAIR’S REVIEW 
Following elections and a new Council in May, a new Scrutiny Committee structure was adopted, giving the Council 
three Scrutiny Committees; Corporate Infrastructure & Regulatory Services, Children’s and Health & Adult Care.  
This new structure reflects the ongoing direction towards health and social care integration and a balancing of Scrutiny 
Committee workloads.  Each Scrutiny Committee has its own specific remit but as Scrutiny Chairs we have worked 
together to take a ‘whole Council’ and Devon-wide approach to our overview and scrutiny role, and this year several 
themes have emerged across our work: 
 
Integration and working better together 
Health & social care integration remains a significant challenge for Council and Health leaders, and Scrutiny have looked 
to influence this through reviewing the progression of the Better Care Fund TG as well as the establishment of a standing 
overview group. The need for better connections between the police, local councils and community/voluntary groups to 
find solutions to community wellbeing issues was highlighted in a review of the Impact of Changes to Local Policing, 
and multi-agency working has been a key concern for councillors examining the state of Children & Young People’s 
Emotional Health & Wellbeing and the availability of the right support. 
 
Quality and Outcomes 
Monitoring the quality of services and pushing for improvements is an enduring theme for Scrutiny. Members have 
continued to question CCGs over the impact of changes to community care services and examined the state of the NHS 
in Devon through the NHS Inquiry Spotlight Review. A further Spotlight Review established a number of principles to 
ensure that the future of Public Health Nursing maintained a focus on improving outcomes for children, and the quality 
and delivery of Broadband and Mobile Connectivity in the County was also examined through a Task Group review. 
 
Challenges facing a large and diverse County 
As one of the largest counties in England, with a vast rural landscape, travel around Devon is predominantly by car, and 
the impact of this is being explored by the Air Quality & Congestion Task Group.  Equally, in a climate of reduced 
funding, connecting people to local services across Devon is a key challenge, and this has been reflected in much of 
Scrutiny’s work including the already mentioned reviews into local policing, community care and broadband and mobile 
provision.  The difficulties recruiting and maintaining social work staff in rural areas was also highlighted by Members 
following visits to Children’s Social Care offices. 
 
Councillor Alistair Dewhirst, Chair of Corporate Infrastructure & Regulatory Services Scrutiny 
Councillor Rob Hannaford, Chair of Children’s Scrutiny 
Councillor Sara Randall Johnson, Chair of Health & Adult Care Scrutiny 

This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-NC-ND 

 
 

 
  
 
  

Scrutiny Annual Report 

2017/18 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

HEADLINE STATS 
 

Committee Meetings Task Groups & 
Spotlights  

19 meetings held 
105 reports 
considered 
35 public 
presentations heard 
1 cabinet decision 
debated under ‘call in’ 

9 reviews established 
139 witnesses 
interviewed 
4 reports published  
28 recommendations 
for change 
 
 

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 9

http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=427
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=428
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=429
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Impact%20of%20Changes%20to%20Local%20Policing%20Spotlight%20Revi&ID=678&RPID=1165104
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=NHS%20Inquiry%20Spotlight%20Review&ID=728&RPID=1165082
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Public%20Health%20Nursing%20Spotlight%20Review%202018&ID=730&RPID=1165088
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Broadband%20and%20Mobile%20Connectivity%20Task%20Group&ID=731&RPID=1165092
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Childrens%20Social%20Care%20Site%20Visits&ID=727&RPID=1165117
https://sovereignwales.com/tag/vaccine-scam/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc-nd/3.0/


  

WHAT HAPPENED NATIONALLY? 
 
Communities & Local Government Select Committee Report 
In December 2017 the CLG Select Committee published its report into the Effectiveness of Local 
Government Scrutiny, recommending a number of measures to strengthen the independence of 
the scrutiny function and increased scrutiny of combined authorities, Local Enterprise 
Partnerships (LEP) and arm’s length bodies. The Government published its response in March 
2018, agreeing to provide further guidance on Scrutiny and promising reforms around LEP 
governance, but taking the stance that much of Scrutiny’s working practices should be 
determined locally. 
 
Centre for Public Scrutiny Independent Review of Governance at Kensington & Chelsea 
Following the Grenfell Tower tragedy, Kensington & Chelsea Council commissioned the CfPS to 
undertake and independent review of their governance arrangements. The report sets out 12 
principles of good governance and several recommendations, the majority of which centre 
around a greater involvement of local people in decision making. 
 
Northamptonshire County Council 
Following the Council’s financial difficulties which came to light in early 2018, the Government 
ordered a Best Value Inspection of Northamptonshire County Council.  The report, published in 
March 2018, concluded that the Council failed to comply with its duty under the Local 
Government Act to provide best value in the delivery of its services.  Scrutiny arrangements were 
found to be ineffective with Scrutiny Members reporting that they had been refused information 
and that there was a culture in the Council which discouraged challenge and criticism. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Public presentations at Committee 
Through the Council’s Public Participation Scheme Scrutiny Members listened to public 
representations on: 

• Special educational needs • Children’s centres 

• Broadband & mobile 
connectivity 

• Health & social care 
integration 

• Sustainability & 
Transformation Plan 

• Plans for community hospital 
services and buildings 

• Changes to community care 
services by Devon CCGs 

 

• Foster carer allowances 

• HotSW LEP Productivity Plan 
 

 
 

HOW HAS SCRUTINY LISTENED? 
 
Scrutiny Committees hear from Devon residents in a variety of ways and as such 
play an important role in Scrutiny’s priority setting and direction.  
 

Task Group & Spotlight Review witnesses 
This year almost 40% of review witnesses were representing communities or service 
users.  Members also spoke to Council and NHS officers, service providers, public sector 
partners, schools and private organisations. As well as face to face meetings, reviews 
considered written evidence from the public and relevant groups, and used surveys to 
connect with town and parish councils and schools.   
 

Written representations 
Scrutiny Members are often lobbied on 
matters of public interest and community 
concern and this helps to inform Scrutiny 
priorities.  This year over 100 people wrote to 
the Health & Adult Scrutiny Committee about 
proposed changes to community care 
services by CCGs.  Public opinion around this 
matter has contributed to this issue being one 
of Scrutiny’s most enduring and closely 
monitored concerns.  
 

Staff groups 
Good scrutiny relies on a 
range of evidence which can 
include hearing from 
frontline staff. This year 
Children’s Scrutiny 
Members met and heard 
from over 80 children’s 
social work staff during 
their visits to social care 
offices and the Atkinson 
Secure Children’s Home. 
 

HOW DID SCRUTINY INFLUENCE THE BUDGET? 
A new process for  the 2018/19 budget saw the Scrutiny Committees examine their services’ draft 
budgets at Committee meetings in January. The Corporate Infrastructure & Regulatory Services 
Scrutiny (CIRS) Committee had a co-ordinating role whilst also considering their own services’ 
draft budgets, alongside the proceedings and recommendations from the Children’s and Health 
& Adult Care Budget Scrutiny meetings. The Committees were largely supportive of the proposed 
2018/19 budget, including the proposed 4.99% increase in Council Tax (inclusive of the Social 
Care precept), with Members recognising the financial pressures the Council faces and the need 
to safeguard the Council’s budget. 
 
Scrutiny welcomed Devon’s inclusion in the Government’s business rates retention pilot and 
additional monies from the Better Care Fund, while asking for clarity over the future of this funding. 
Scrutiny also asked Cabinet to provide additional funding to allow Highways to undertake 
more preventative drainage works. Taking into account Scrutiny’s recommendation, 
Cabinet proposed an additional £6.5 million to the Highways budget, which was formally 
approved by the County Council in February. 
 

P
age 12

A
genda Item

 9

https://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/communities-and-local-government-committee/news-parliament-2017/scrutiny-committee-report-17-19/
https://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/communities-and-local-government-committee/news-parliament-2017/scrutiny-committee-report-17-19/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-authority-overview-and-scrutiny-government-response-to-select-committee-report
https://www.rbkc.gov.uk/newsroom/all-council-statements/centre-public-scrutiny-–-independent-review-governance
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/690731/Best_Value_Inspection_NCC.pdf
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=427&MId=2653&Ver=4
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=427&MId=2653&Ver=4
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=428&MId=2651&Ver=4
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=429&MId=2652&Ver=4
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=429&MId=2652&Ver=4
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2133&Ver=4


WHAT HAS SCRUTINY CHANGED? 
 

Assessing the impact of Scrutiny is not always easy and a strong Scrutiny function influences decision making and policy development in a variety of ways. By developing a reputation based on robust 
questioning and examination of the issues, good Scrutiny drives decision makers to make better, more informed and accountable decisions.  But as Local Government Scrutineers we must also ask 
ourselves ‘What difference has Scrutiny made?’, ‘What has it changed?’ and ‘How have we improved things for the people of Devon?’. 
 
Looking back over the last 12 months, tangible changes in council and local health policy and practice have taken place as a direct result of Scrutiny recommendations, or have been heavily guided by 
Scrutiny direction.  In the last year Scrutiny has also influenced local partners, and through the lobbying of MPs and Government, sought to bring local concerns to the national table.  Some examples are 
highlighted below. 
 
 
 
 

A Spotlight Review was held to receive feedback and review 
the effectiveness of Health Scrutiny in Devon.  Members 
recommended a number of steps to make Scrutiny more 
effective, including combining health and adult social care 
scrutiny into one committee.  

Taking into account Scrutiny’s views, Cabinet made an 
initial decision to give a one year extension to the current 
provider, before later making the decision to bring the 
service in house.  Scrutiny’s principles for future delivery 
were agreed by Cabinet. 

The Council’s Scrutiny structure was amended with effect 
from May 2017 to include the creation of the Health & Adult 
Care Scrutiny Committee.  

Bringing Public Health Nursing services in-house offers 
many benefits including better integrated working with 
Early Years and Early Help services.  Scrutiny’s principles 
will form the basis for the development of the Public 
Health Nursing Service going forward. 

This has allowed more integrated Scrutiny of health and 
adult social care issues, which should lead to better 
outcomes for the people of Devon. 

  

SCRUTINY IMPACT 

The Report of the Highways Asset Management Plan Spotlight 
Review recommended the addition of Performance Indicators 
to measure the Council’s success in developing community 
self-help schemes and gully clearance and drainage. 

 

ACTION 

The recommended Key Performance Indicators were 
added to the Council’s Highway Asset Management Plan.  

This has helped ensure that the Council is monitoring its 
own performance on issues which are important to 
communities. 

The Agriculture Task Group made several recommendations 
asking Government to stand up for agriculture and support 
Devon’s rural communities and farmers, particularly in Brexit 
trade negotiations, agricultural policy, financial support and 
succession. 

The Task Group Chair and a Cabinet Member presented 
the Task Group report and recommendations to South 
West MPs in Westminster.  The report also heavily 
informed the Council’s response to a DEFRA consultation 
on Brexit and agriculture. 

The challenges facing agriculture in Devon have been 
raised at parliamentary level through local MPs, and with 
DEFRA, ensuring that the voice of agriculture in Devon 
contributes towards Government policy and decision 
around Brexit.  

Following an ‘inadequate’ rating from Ofsted, a Task Group 
reviewed the key issues facing Care Leavers and highlighted 
a number of areas for improvement including an increase in 
young people’s involvement in pathway planning and the 
allocation of personal advisors.   

Following the Scrutiny review and other work undertaken 
by Children’s Services, the Care Leavers service strove to 
make improvements in these areas and a recent self-
assessment identified increased involvement in pathway 
planning and highlighted the quality of personal advisors. 

This has contributed towards the Council’s commitment 
to improving life chances and outcomes for care leavers.  

A Scrutiny Spotlight Review into the future of Public Health 
Nursing recommended that services be brought back in 
house.  A later follow up review established six key principles 
to be up held in the future delivery of Public Health Nursing 
services. 

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 9

http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=360%20Health%20Scrutiny%20Spotlight%20Review&ID=540&RPID=1172688
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD513&ID=513&RPID=1147866
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD513&ID=513&RPID=1147866
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD516&ID=516&RPID=1148094
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Care%20Leavers%20Task%20Group%20Interim%20Report&ID=253&RPID=1172983
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Public%20Health%20Nursing%20Spotlight%20Review%202017&ID=544&RPID=1172463
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Public%20Health%20Nursing%20Spotlight%20Review%202018&ID=730&RPID=1172355


WHAT NEXT FOR SCRUTINY? 
 
Looking to the future, Devon County Council faces the ever-demanding 
challenge of balancing its budget and improving life for the people of Devon, in 
a climate of continued reductions in funding and a growing demand for 
services. Health & Social Care Integration and support for an ageing 
population will continue to be a key theme for Scrutiny in Devon, alongside a 
growing focus on Early Help, aiming to reduce demand for services and 
improve outcomes for children and families.  
 
National issues such as Brexit and Devolution will impact on the workings of 
the County Council and the lives of residents, and the Council’s purposeful 
systems work ‘Doing what matters’ is changing the way the Council thinks 
about delivering services across the County. 
 
In times of change and instability, as a ‘critical friend’ Scrutiny has a key role in 
ensuring that the Council steps up to these challenges and brings the voice 
of Devon residents to the forefront of policy development and decision making.  
 
Devon’s Scrutiny Councillors will also need to keep abreast of national 
developments and take learning from the experiences of other local authorities.   
 
We hope that pending Government guidance will provide Scrutiny with up to 
date direction, whilst still giving Councils the flexibility to determine local 
Scrutiny arrangements.  Greater clarity on the requirements for LEP Scrutiny is 
also awaited, and we are currently working with our local authority partners to 
prepare for this.   
 

 

SUPPORT, ADVICE & TRAINING  
 
Scrutiny Team 
The Council’s Scrutiny Committees are supported by three Scrutiny Officers, carrying out research and 
proposing possible areas of investigation and lines of questioning. They attend committee meetings as advisers 
on current and planned investigations and project manage the work of Task Groups and Spotlight Reviews, 
including project milestones, triangulating data and research, identifying and inviting witnesses and other 
contributors, and compiling the information together into the investigation final report.   
 
Specialist Advisors 
This year, both Children’s Scrutiny and Health & Adult Care Scrutiny have employed Special Advisors, helping 
to equip Members with the appropriate knowledge to support their work monitoring and challenging decisions 
and policy development in education, social care and health. 
 
Masterclasses 
Scrutiny Members continue to receive regular development sessions in the form of Masterclasses to further 
their understanding of key areas of the Council’s business and relevant issues affecting communities.  Topics 
this year have included Early Help, Safeguarding Adults and Emergency Planning. 
 

 
Scrutiny Chairs express their thanks to all Scrutiny Committee Members, recognising in particular the valuable contribution made by Members through Task Group investigations and 

Spotlight Reviews. 
 

The support of the dedicated team of Scrutiny Officers continues to be highly valued by the Scrutiny Committees. 
 
For any background information on the work of scrutiny in Devon, individual Scrutiny Committees’ remits and membership as well as past and present Task Group, Spotlight Review and Annual Reports 

please visit  
https://new.devon.gov.uk/democracy/committee-meetings/scrutiny-committees/ 

 
Democratic Services & Scrutiny Secretariat, County Hall, Topsham Road, Exeter, EX2 4QD; tel. 01392 383143 

email scrutiny@devon.gov.uk  @DevonDemocracy  

 
 
 

20 YEARS OF SCRUTINY 
 
2018 marks twenty years since Devon County Council first included a form of ‘scrutiny’ in its decision-making 
processes.  The Council plans to host a learning, development and networking event in the Autumn, inviting Scrutiny 
colleagues from across the South West and further afield, to help celebrate, discuss and review two decades of 
Scrutiny in Devon.  
 

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 9

https://new.devon.gov.uk/democracy/committee-meetings/scrutiny-committees/
mailto:scrutiny@devon.gov.uk
mailto:scrutiny@devon.gov.uk

	Agenda
	6 Strengthened Local Enterprise Partnerships
	9 Devon Scrutiny Annual Report 2017/2018

